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THE STORY OF CHEQUAMEGON BAY,

BY REUBEN GOLD THWAITES.

’

Wg commonly think of Wisconsin as a young State.
In a certain sense she is. There are men now living, two
or three of whom I meet almost duaily, who were blazing
paths through the Wisconsin wilderness, only sixty years
ago: men who cleared the forests and broke the prairies ;
who founded frontier communities which have developed
into cities; who upon this far-away border sowed the seeds
of industries which to-day support tens of thousands of
their fellows ; who threw up their hats when the Territory
was erected ; and who sat in the convention which gave to
the new State a constitution. The Wisconsin of to-day,
the Wisconsin which we know, is indeed young; for the
lively octogenarians who were in at the birth will not admit
that they are now old. But there was an earlier, a less
prosaic, a far more romantic Wisconsin,—the French Wis-
consin; and it had flourished in its own fashion for full
two centuries before the coming of the Anglo-Saxon, who,
brusquely crowding the Creole to the wall, made of his
old home an American Commonwealth. _

In 1634, when the child born upon the Mayflower was
but in her fourteenth year, Jean Nicolet, sent out by the .
enterprising Champlain as far as Wisconsin,—a thousand
miles of canoe journey west from Quebec,— made trading
contracts, such as they were, with a half-score of squalid
tribes huddled in widely-separated villages throughout the
broad wilderness lying between Lakes Superior and Michi-
gan. It was a daring, laborious expedition, as notable in
its day as Livingsfone’s earliest exploits in Darkest Africa ;
and although its results were slow of development,— for in
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the seventeenth century man was still cautiously dellbel-
ate, — this initial visit of the forest ambassador of New
France to the country of the Uppe1 Lakes broke the p‘tth
for a train of events which were of mighty significance |in
American history.! |
Let us examine the topomaphy of Wlsconsm The
State is situated at the head of the chain of Great Lflkes
It is touched on the east by Lake Michigan, on the north
by Lake Superior, on the west by the MlSSlSSlppl, and| is
drained by interlacing rivers which so .closely approach
each other that the canoe voyager can with case pass fr(?m
one great water system to the other; he can enter t;*hc
continent at the Gulf of St. Lawrence, and by means of
numerous narrow portages in Wisconsin emerge into t:ghe
south-flowing Mississippi, eventually returning to the
Atlantic through the Gulf of Mexico. From Lake Michi-
gan, the Fox-Wisconsin river system was the most popu] ar
hmhway to the great river; into Lake Superior, there ﬁow
numerous tulbulent streams from whose sources lead short,
portage trails over to the headwaters.of feeders of ghe
Mississippi. From the western shore of Lake Superior,
‘Pigeon River invites to exploration of the Winnipeg coun-
try, whence the canoecist can by a half-hundred easy routes
reach the distant regions of Athabasca and the Polar SA‘l
In their early voyages to the head of lake navigation, it was
in-the course of nature that the French should soon dis-
cover Wisconsin; and having discovered it, learn thatl it
was the key-point of the Nmthwest—the gateway to the
entire continental interior. Thus, through Wlscons”nb
remarkable system' of interlacing waterways, to which
Nicolet led the way, New France largely prosecuted her
far-reaching forest trade and her missionary evplomtlons,
securing a nominal control of the basin of the MlelSSlppl
at a time when Anglo-Saxons had gained little more of the

ﬂ

1The chief authority on Nicolet is Bﬁtterﬁe]d’s Discovery of the Northwest
(Cincinnati, 1881). See also Wisconsin Historical Collections, XIL., pp. 1%25.
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Atlantic slope than could be seen from the mast-head of a
caravel. Thus the geographical character of Wisconsin
became, early in the history of New France, an important
factor. The trading posts and Jesuit missions on Chequa-
megon Bay! of Lake Superior, and on Green Bay of Lake
Michigan, soon played a prominent part in American
exploration. The career of Green Bay is familiar to us
all.> T have thought it well hastily to summarize, in the
brief space allowed me, the equally instructive stony of
Chequamegon Bay.

The sandstone cliffs of Lake Superior were, many geolo-
gists think, among the first Laurentian islands to arise
from the ancient ocean; if this be so, then the rim of our
greatest inland sea is one of the oldest spots on earth. In
its numerous mines of copper, prehistoric man long delved
and wrought with rude hammers and chisels of stone,
fashioning those curious copper implements which are

carefully treasured in American museums of archeology ;?

and upon its rugged shores the Caucasian carly planted his
stake, when between him and New England tidewater all
was savagery. '

After the coming to Wisconsin of Nicolet, a long period
followed, in which the energies of New France were
devoted to fighting back the Iroquois, who swarmed before
the very gates of Quebec and Montreal. Exploration was
for the time impossible. A" quarter of a century passes

!In his authoritative * History of the Ojibway Nation,” in Minn. Hist.
Colls., V., Warren prefers the spelling ¢ Chagoumigon,” although recognizing
‘¢ Shagawaumikong ” and ¢ Shaugahwaumikong.” ¢ Chequamegon?” is the
current modern form. Rev. Edward P. Wheeler, of Ashland, an authority on
the Chippewa tongue and traditions, says the pronunciation should be ‘¢ Sheh-
gu-wah-mi-kung,” with the accent on the last sylluble,

2See Neville Mld Martin’s Historic Green Bay (Milwaukee, 1894), and vari-
ous articles in the Wisconsin Historical Collections. °

8 8ee Minn. Hist. Colls., V., pp. 98, 99, note, for account of early copper
mining on Lake Superior, by Indians. In the summer of 1892, W, H. Holmes,
of the Smithsonian Institution, found on Isle Royale no less than s thousand
abandoned shafts which had been worked by thcm; and “ enough stone im-
plements luy around to stock every museum in the country.”
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away hefore we hive evidence of another white ruan upon
Wisconsin =oil. Tn the spring of 16500 the Tudians of the
valley of the Fox were visited by two Freneh fur-traders
trom the Lower =t Lawrence — Piovre Eeprit, Sieor
adisson. and his sister= hushand, Madaed Chouart, Sieur
des CGrroseilliers, T ol American history there arve no
chracters wore pietavesgue an these twa aedventurous
Creoles, whoo in theie fored desive to > travell and see coun-
trie=,” and 1o he known w o the remotest people” roamed
al will over the hromd region hefween st James’s Bay and
the Wisconsin River, luvine many curions expreeriences with
wild Teasts ondd willder men. They made severs! important
ceographicad discoveries e mmong themy probably the dis-
covery of the Mississippi River in 183 fourteen vears
belore the visit of Joliet and Marquette 3 and from o trad-
ine settiement proposed by them to the Fuglish, when
theiv felow-rountrymen o longer gave then employient,
developed the wrent establishment of the Had-ouw’s Liny
Company.  The unconscionsly-musing nareative which
Fodiscon afterwards wrede, Tor the editieation o Ning
Charles 11 of Enolud. s one of the most interesiing
Lknown to Ameriean antiquaries.

Two yvears alter Rudizson and Groseiiliors were upon the
Fox River, and muede their notable trip to the Mississippi,
thev were agin in the Northwest ctumn of 1661 ) and
thi= time upon Lake Saperior, which they had appronched
by carrving around the Sanit Stes Marie Shivting the

Hondisson's Porpres wis ptiblishiod by the Prigee soclety s Boston, Iss0e
et portion relading o Wiseonsin i reprodiend, with nates in Wiveaasis
Historieal Codbeefions, N Sec abso Jesndr etadious 1800, Tor Father
Laliemnnt's pepeort of the diseoserfos of the = Two Froneinen™ sho diad Gl
o fiue viver. wreat. bremeds Jdeopy oisd conpparables they save ta aure ceent
=t hLaswretie”

Lo Feorguelin's meap of Loss wliad s new Pleeon Rlvero i part s the ot r-

e An
artenpt s ke by the Wisconsin =tate flistorieal =nciets, dn the Wisenrsin

et ionat bowredary Berseen Minnesctn ot Ciooedag bs vnlled Govgaed

Lews iy, dariny the session ol 320950 4o eali w proposed nes connly. Radis-
s Pl ke Was asbapded Dy the Friensds of the BHL ot the weicnre itaelt

Tadbeod 1o foutms,
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=outhern shore of the Tuke, past the new famons Pictured
Rocks, they cavried aeross Keweenaw ol visited o hand
of Christine Indian=' not far from the wonth of Montreal
River, now the e western bonndury Between Upper Michi-
wan and Wisconsin, and, portagine acvoss the hase of the
Chiequamezon Isbind of to-day - then united to the nin-
land,— enteved beautiful Chegeaneron Bave Just where
they made their camp, it i inpossible from Rinlisson’s cone
Fused wmiveative fo sav s but theo B owes upon the msinkid
no Wisconsin nutiquary now <donbi=o and we hive reason
to bulieve that it wax upon the <outhwest shore, hetween
the modern towns of Ashland aed Washburn?

Qur chronieler writes, with o partieadariny of detail
suggestive of 1re Foe: -+ We went about to make a forl
of stales, w' was in this manner. Suppose that the
walter-=ide had ben inone end¢oaft the same end there
shoadd be murtherers, and ot need we msle s bastion inoa
trinngle to deferad us trom assanlt, The docre was neare
the wutter side. our fire was io the midle, and aur hed on
the right hand, covered. There were houglis of trees ol
about vur tort layved nerosse, one uppon an other. Besides
those bougln, we hwd o long cord tyed w some spall

bells, w' weare senterevs, Ploadly. we made an ende
PNy cnbled Crees,
S Rmdissonts oo phainly BiEenies thot fhe fraveilers portaoed aevoss tie

Tong, narrow saunde<pdt o ely <tviod Shawaownmnihows, in their day wiaited
with the nrainboel, Tn v dnsnfar, nd beseine the mone Clhioguaiernn
[sBued s this Badisson desergbes as v point of 2 leazues foney wied <otne o
pces broad 7 aned Dt B refers toc it as trhe podit st forors that Bay,
wes pesetithies oo~ Bibel” A ter making this portone of =haguwsoi-
hone they procveded i theiy Boodammed 2t the vt of This fuy we Lopded
The Ottawas of the paeety shestoed Toeross over To their vidligos v the npd-
witers ar the Black el Chigpewa, aml o indine-plaee woas so ey antageons
For this prrpeese as the sontiisvest caorner ol the buyv,e TS Blain fron e nar-
rative that the Frenchmes, nos 3ot to themse bve- balit he e Sortined L o
ar near the plee of Boding, en the mainband, The Chippews tradition ol
fhie comtbue of Wadisson and Goeeseilliees, as given by Warren dn Wew, fiis,
Cnffa N L B R plaees e ceange of e whiie oo s e eastern
ealremity of Madetnbae o b Podutey Tahiened, The resedithng runs cdose (o

b Raedivson™s

the fiet, B mest ot her paetionhiar= o et Ta The mnitier af s

Jenra] e es to ronns Lo doabt thost e tradition epys,
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: “
of that fort in 2 dayes’ time.” Modernize this statement,
and in imagination we can see this first dwelling erected by
man on the shores of Lake Superior; a small log hut,
built possibly on the extremity of a small rocky promon-
tory ; the door opens to the water front, while the land
side, to the rear of the hut, is defended by a salient of
palisades stretching from bank to bank of the narrow
promontory ; all about the rude structure is a wall of pine
boughs piled one upon the other, with a long cord inﬁFn--
twined, and on this cord are strung numbers of the little
hawk-bells then largely used in the Indian trade for pur-
poses of gift and barter. It was expected that in case of
a night attack from savages, who might be willing to kill
them for the sake of their stores, the enemy would stir f:the
boughs and unwittingly ring the bells, thus arousing the
little garrison. These ingenious defences were not. put to
the test, although no doubt they had a good moral effect in
keeping the thieving Hurons at a respectful distance.
Winter was just setting in. The waters of the noble
hay were taking on that black and sullen aspect peculiar to
the season. The beautiful islands, later named for uthe

‘Twelve Apostles,! looked gloomy indeed in their dark

evergreen mantles. TFrom the precipitous edges of :che
red-sandstoné cliffs, which girt about this estuary of our
greatest inland sea, the dense pine forests stretched west-
ward and southward for hundreds of miles. Here and there

in the primeval depths was a cluster of starveling Algon-
kins, still trembling from fear of a return of the Iroquois,
‘who had chased them from Canada into this land of swamps

and tangled woods, where their safety lay in hiding. u At
wide intervals, uncertain trails led from village to village,
and in places the rivers were convenient highways; these
narrow paths, however, beset with danger in a thousand

{i
1 Apparently by Jonathan Carver, in the map accompanying his volume of
Travels. ’ : :
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shapes, but emphasized the unspeakable terrors of the
wilderness. ,

Radisson and Groseilliers, true coureurs des bots, were
not daunted by the dangers which daily beset them. After
caching their goods, they passed the winter of 1661-62
with their Huron neighbors, upon a prolonged hunt, far
into the Mille Lacs region of Minnesota. The season was
phenomenally severe, and the Indians could not find game
enough to sustain life. A famine ensued in the camp, the
tragical details of which are painted by our friend Radisson
with. Hogarthian minuteness. In the spring of 1662, the
traders were back again at Chequamegon, and built another
fortified shelter, this time possibly on the sand-spit of
Shaugawaumikong,! from which base they once more wan-

1 Says Warren (Minn. Hist. Colls., V., p. 102): **Shag-a-waum-ik-ong is a
narrow neck or point of land about four miles long, and lying nearly parallel
to the island of La Pointe, toward the western end of which it converges, till
the distance from point to point is not more than two miles.” Tn first entering
the bay, the previous autumn, Radisson describes the point of Shagawaumikong,
and suys: *That point should be very fitt to build & advantageous for the
building of a fort, as we did the spring following.” But later on in his jour-
nal, in describing the return to the' bay from their winter with the Indisns in
the Mille Lacs region, he does not mention the exact location of the new .
¢“fort.” While in this fort, they *‘ received [news] that the Octanaks [Ottawas]
[had] built a fort on the point that forms that Buay, weh resembles a small
lake. 'We went towards it with' all speede,—and had a perilous trip thither,
across thin ice.” This would indicate that the French camp was not on the
point. As with many other passages in the journul, it is impossible to
reconcile these two statements.

Warren, who had an intimate acquaintance with Chippewa traditions, be-
lieved that that tribe, driven westward by degrees from the shores of the Gulf
of St. Lawrence, reached Lake Superior-about the time of the Columbian dis-
covery, and came to a stand on Shagawaumikong Point. “ On this spot they
remained not long, for they were harassed daily by their warlike foes, and for
greater security they were obliged to move their camp to the adjacent island of
Mon-ing-wun-a-kauning (place of the golden-breasted woodpecker, but known
as La Pointe). Herc, they chose the site of their ancient town, and it covered
a space about thrce miles long and two broud, comprising the western end of
the island.”—(Minn. Hist. Colls.,V.,p. 96.) They remained in this large town
““for the space of three generations, or one hundred and twenty years,” but
for various reasons (see ibid., p. 108 et seq., for the details) evacuated the
place, and settling on the udjacent mainland came to regard La Pointe Island
(now Madeclaine) as an abode of evil spirits, upon which, it is said, until the
days of Cadotte, no Indian dare stay over night alone. Gradually, as the bea-
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dered in search of adventures and peltries, going as fﬂm‘
northwest as Lake Assiniboine, and later in the season
returning to their home on the Lower St. Lawrence. |

When Radisson’s party went to Lake Supeuor, in the
autumn of 1661, they were accompanied as far as Keweenaw
Bay by a Jesuit priest, Father Pierre Ménard, who estab-
lished - there a mission among the Ottawas. - The following
June, disheartened in his attempt to convert these obdurate
tribesmen, Ménard set out for the Huron villages on the
upper water of the Black and Chippewa, but perlshed on
the way.!

It was not until August of 1665, three years later, that
Father Claude Allouez, another Jesuit, was sent to re-
‘open the abandoned Ottawa mission on Lake Superior.
He chose his site on.the southwestern shore of Chequa-
megon Bay, possibly the same spot on which RﬂdleOpS
hut had been built, four years previous, and piously
called his mission and the locality, La Pointe du Saint
Esprit, which in time was shortened to La Pointe.?

ver grew more scarce, the Chippewas radiated inland, so that at the time of
Radisson’s visit the shores of the bay were almost unoccupied, save durinvdthe
best fishing season, when Chippewas, Ottawas, Hurons, and others congre-
gated there in considerable numbers. . v ?

. 1 The route which Ménard took is involved in doubt. Verwyst, following
the Jesuit Relations, thinks he ascended some stream flowing into Lake Supe-
rior, and portaged over to the headwaters of Black River. Others, followmw
Tailhan’s Perrot, believe that he crossed over to Green Bay, then ascended
the Fox, descended the Wisconsin, and ascended the Mississippi to the mouth
of the Black, If the latter was his route, his visit to the Mississippi pxecéded
Jeliet’s, by eleven years. ‘

- 2 There has always been some confuswn among antiquarians, as to what par-
ticular topographical feature gave name to the region. Neill (in Minn. Hist.
Colls., V., p. 116) is of the opinion that Allouez ‘¢ built a bark chapel on the
shores of the bay, between a village of Petun Hurons and a village ('omp%)sed
of three bands of Ottawus.” That Allouez was stationed- upon the mainland,
where the Indians now were, is evident from his description of theﬂbay
(Relations for 1666-67): ‘A beautiful bay, at. the bottom of which is
situated the great village of the savages, who there, plant their ﬁelds of
Indian corn, and lead a stationary life. They are there, to the number of
eight hundred men bearing arms, but collected from seven different natlons,
who dwell in peace with each other.” In christening his mission “La Pomte &

he had reference, I think, not to the particular plot of ground on which his

\I
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At the time of Radisson’s visit, the shores of Chequame-
gon Bay were  uninhabited save by a few half-starved
Hurons ; but soon thereafter it became the centre of a con-
siderable Indian population, residents of several tribes hav-
ing been drawn thither, ﬁrst, by the fisheries, second, by a
fancied security in so isolated a region against the Iroquois
of the East and the wild Sioux of the West. When
Allouez arrived in this polyglot village, October 1, he
found there Chippewas, Pottawattomies, Kickapoos, Sauks,
and Foxes, all of them Wisconsin tribes; besides these
were Hurons, Ottawas, Miamis, and Illinois,— victims of

- Iroquois hate who had fled in droves hefore the westward
advances of their merciless tormentors.

Despite his ‘large congregations, Allouez made little
headway among these people, being consoled for his hard-
ships and ill-treatmeunt by the devotion of a mere handful
‘of followers. For four years did he labor alone in the
Wisconsin wilderness, hoping aguinst hope, varying the
monotony of his dreary task by occasional canoe voyages
to- Quebec, to report progress to his father superior.
Father James Marquette, a more youthful zealot, was at

~last sent to relieve him, and in September, 1669, arrived at

chapel lay, but to the neighboring sandy point of Shagawaumikong, hemming
in the bay on the east, in which he must have had a poetic interest, for tradi-
tion told him that it was the landfall of the Chippewas, and the place where,
perhaps a century before, had been fought a great battle between them and the
Dakotahs (or Sioux), relics of which were to be found in our own day, in the
human bones scatteréd freely through the shifting soil, and doubtless in his
time were much in evidence.

The map in the Jesuit Relations for 1670-71 styles the entire Bayfield penin-

sula, forming the west shore of the bay, ¢ La Pointe du St. Esprit,” which of
‘course was map-making from vague report. IFranquelin’s map of 1688, more
exact in every particular, places a small settlement near the southwestern
cxtremity of the bay. See also Verwyst's Missionary Labors of Fathers
Marquette, Ménard, and Allouez (Milwaukee, 18%6), p. 183.
. In 1820, Cass and Schooleraft visited Chequamegon Buy, and the latter, in his
Narrative, says: *‘ Passing this [Bad)] river, we continued along the sandy
formation to its extreme termination, which separates the Bay of St. Charles
[Chequamecgon] from that remarkable group of islands called the Twelve
Apostles by Carver. It is this sandy point which iy called La Pointe Chagoi~
megon by the old French authors, a term now shortened to La Pointe.”
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La Pointe from Sault Ste. Marie, after spendmo' a full
month upon. the journey,—so hampered was he, at that
early season, by snow and ice. Allouez, thus relieve]d
from a work that had doubtless palled upon him, proceeded
upon invitation of the Pottawattomies to Green Bay, where
he arrived early in December, and founded .the second
Jesuit mission in Wisconsin, St. Francis Xavier, on the
site of the modern town of Depere.! \

Marquette had succeeded to an uncomfortable berth
Despite his strenuous cfforts as a peacemaker, his dusky
parishioners soon unwisely quarreled with their western
neighbors, the Sioux,? with the result that the La Pomte
bands and Marquette with them, were driven like leaves
before an autumn blast' eastward along the southern sho :
of the great lake: the Ottawas taklnfr up their home in the
M‘lmtoulm Islands of Lake Huron, the Hurons accompan)]['—
ing Marquette to the Straits of Mackinaw, where he estab-
lished the mission of St. Ignace.

With La Pointe mission ab‘mdoned, and Lake Superxor
closed to French enterprise by the ¢ raging Sioux,” bhe
mission at Depere now became the centre of Jesult opera-
tions in  Wisconsin, and it was a hundred and sixty- fm‘zr
years later (1835), before mass was again said upon the
. forest-fringed shores of Chequamegon Bay , ‘;

Althourrh the missionary had deserted La Pointe, the fur
trader soon came to be much in ev1dence there. The splut

\

1 By this time fear of the Iroquois had submded, and many Hurons had Iately
returned with the Pottawattomies, Sauks, and Foxes, to the old haunts of the
latter, on Fox River. Cadillac, writing in 1703 from Detroit, says (Maryry,
V., p. 317) : “It is proper that you should be informed that more than ﬁfty
years since [about 1645] the Iroquols by force of arms drove away nearly all of
the other Indian nations from this region [Lake Huroi] to the extremity of
Lake Superior, a country north of this post, and frightfully barren and mhos-
pitable. About thirty-two years ago [1671] these exiled tribes collected them-
selves together at Michillimakinak.”

2 ¢The cause of the perpetual war, carried on between these two natlons,!ls
this, that both claim, as their exclusive hunting-ground, the tract of country
which lies between them, and uniformly attack each other when they meet
upon it.”—Henry’s Travels and Adventures (N. Y., 1809), pp. 197, 198.
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of Radisson and Groseilliers long permeated this out-of-
the-way corner of the Northwest. We find (1673), three
~ years after Marquette’s expulsion, La Salle’s trading agent,
Sieur Raudin, cajoling the now relentent Sioux at the
western end of Lake Superior.” In the summer of 1679,
that dashing coureur de bois, Daniel Grayson du I’ Hut,!
ascended the St. Louis River, which divides Wisconsin
and Minnesota, and penetrated” with his lively crew of
voyageurs to the Sandy Lake country, being probably the
first white trader upon the head-wateis of the Mississippi.
The succeeding winter, he spent in profitable comierce
with the* Assiniboines, Crees, and other northern tribes in
the neighborhood of Grand Portage,®> on the boundary
between Minnesota and Canada. In June, 1680, probably
unaware of the easier portage by way of the Mille Lacs
and Rum Riveér, Du I’ Hut set out at the head of a small
company of employés to reach the Mississippi by a new
route. Entering the narrow and turbulent Bois Brulé,?
half-way along ‘the southern shore of Lake Superior,
between Red CIliff and St. Louis River, he with difficulty
made his way over the fallen trees and beaver dams which
then choked its course. From its head waters there is a
mile-long portage to the Upper St. Croix; this traversed,
Du'l’ Hut was upon a romantic stream which swiftly car-
ried him, through foaming rapids and deep, cool lakes,
down into the Father of Waters. Here it was that he
heard of Father Louis Hennepin’s captivity among the
Sioux, and with much address and some courage rescued
that doughty adventurer, and carried him by way of the
Fox-Wisconsin route in safety to Mackinaw.

An adventurous forest trader, named Le Sueur, was the
next man to imprint his name on the page of Lake Superior
history. The Fox Indians, who controlled the valleys of

1From whom the city of Duluth, Minn., was named.
2For an account of Grand Portage, see Wis, Hist. Colls., XI., pp. 123-125.
3 Perhaps the most famous of Wisconsin trout streamns,
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the Fox and Wisconsin Rivers, had for various reasons he-
come so hostile to the Freneh that those diverzent streams
were no longer safe ws o gateway rom the Great Takes to
the Great River. The tendeney of the prolonged Fox War
was o foree fur trade travel to the portages of Chicago and
St. Josepls on the outh, and thore of Lake Superior on
the north." It was with a view to keeping open ene of
Do I Hat's old rontes,—ithe Dois Bruld and St. Croix
Rivers,—that Le Suenr was despatehed by the authorities
of New Irance in 1693, Ie built @ stockaded fort on
Madelaine iskmd, convenient for guarding the nerthern
approact,” and another onoan island in the Migsis<ippi,
below the mouth ol the 8t Croix, and near the present
town of Red Wing, Minncrota. The post in the Mississippi
soon heeame # the centre of commerce for the Western
parts™: and the station in Cheguamegon Bay also soon
rose to bmportance, for the Chippewas, who had drified
fur indand fute Wisconsin and Minnesota with the growing
seareity of game,— the natural vesult of the indiseriminate
shwghter whick the fur trade encouraged,—were indueed
by the new trading facilities ro veturu to their old bay
siiore haunts, massing themselves fnan important vill:z;_:c
on the southwestern shore.

This incident strikingly illustrates the important prart
which the teader early came to play in Indian ite. At fiest
an agricelturist inoa snall way, aed a2 hunter and fisher
ordy so far as the daily necessities of food and clothing
required, the Indian was indneed by the white man to kill
animals for their furs,— luxuries ever in vreat demand in
the murts of civilization,  The savage wholly devoted

Paee Parkinaw’s Hefe Cptorg o Cottiet and Hebberd's Biseinedi wid p
Frowel Dowidoaiion {Madison, 1=003,

AN Wi, I Colle, Voo pe 100 savs that soon after 81, Lisson's
takitw possesston of the Novthwest for Franee, af ssult Ste, Marie (1651,
Freneli traders built @ suall forl set sbont with eodar palisdes. on whiel g
canion s maitedcat the monthoaf sospidi ereel o pond midway hetwoen

the present foeation of the Mnerican For Componye's establishinent wud 1he
mission bagse of the Anwricn Besrd of Foreion Missions.™
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himself 1o the chase, and it becune necessary for the white
man to supply himowith clothing. tools, weapons, and orna-
ments ol Euaropean manufactore s the curreney as well as
the necessitios of (e wilderness,' These articles the savage
had heretofore laboriously fashioned for fim=ell’ at ereat
expenditure of time s no Jonger wis he content with native
nnnfacrurves, and drdecd he quickly Tost his old-tine facii-
ity tormaking them, [owas not long hefore e was nhimost
wholly dependent on the white trder for the vommonest
conventences of Hle s no longer heing tied to his tields, he
beeame wore and more st noniul, roving restlessly 1o and
fro in seareh of fur-bering same, sind quickly populating
or depopulating  district aecording to the conditions of
trade.  Without his trader, he gquickly =ank into misery
and despair s with the advent of the trader, @ eertain sort
of prosperity onee mwore reigned in the tepee of the red
picte, Lo the story of Chegquumeyon Buay. the heroes are
the fur frader el the missionury ; and of these the fur
trader is the greater, for without his presence on this seene
there would have been no lodisns to convert.

Although Le Suenr was not many years in connmd upon
Chequamegon Bay . we enteh frequent glimpses therveatter,
of stockaded fur trade =tations here,— French, English,
and Ameriean, in Goeh,— the mest of theny doubtless heing
on Madeline Island, which was easily defensible from the

VM DRS00, VL e 1 Ovigdnetly e Tmbings of Luke Superior
woent Lo Quelioe to Irede s Hat, as dhe whiles penetreded westward Dby dvariees,
liess oo ereial visits spere vestrietod to Monireal, Niagarn, Detrait, dMiocki-
ey, Skt Sre. Ml as el T tnen beemmne the oudpost of Pronch influenee
sty trdneoposts were spened al La Pointes st Lands Rivers amd Pigeon
Piver, wiwd 0 The frieders cven fobowed e <evages on thelr bong hunts alter
l]]{’ [N} J"lil'l‘}'l‘:\‘ill_l ke,

Sn gy e, Chingomedes, chief of the Chipgeavas, vovaged witle Le suaeur
Lo Monereal, to o pay Bis pospeets te Chustibng i 13es o of the vonng ware
Fiars of Pobnt Cliorommbzon, wied to tlenh i for basing civen thone <ope
Erenchmen to dwel wirke Thenss wd ta bestiiy their sarros 1or one dubin. o
Feeuelman Kiliod gl feasts T veenrred secidentaliv, not malicionss" In
his reply Gladv b overnar Fropteme gave the Chippewas some goodadidee,

and siid the t e wonhl avain ~end Le Sueur o commaned @ Chioninizen,”
e Minn, Hst, Unile, NV pod2l,
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mainland.! We know that in 1717 there was a French
trader at La Pointe—the popular name for the entire bay
dlstrlct—for he was asked by Lt. Robertel de la Noiie, who
was then at Kaministiquoya, to forward a letter to a certain
Sioux chief. Tn September, 1718, Captain Paul Legardeur
St. Pierre, whose mother was a daughter of Jean Nicolet,
Wisconsin’s first explorer, was sent to command at Che-
quamegon, assisted by Ensign Linctot, the authorities of
the lower country having been informed that the Chlp-
pewa chief there was, with his fellow-chief at Keweenaw,
going to war with the Foxes. St. Pierre was at Chequame-
gon for at least a year, and was succeeded by Linctot, who
eﬁ'ected an 1mportant peace between the Chippewas and
Sioux.? : : “

* Whether a O'arrlsoned fort was maintained at Chequame-
gon Bay, from St. Pierre’s time to the close of the French
dommatlon, it is impossible to say ; but it seems probable,
for the geographical position was one of great importance
in the development of the fur trade, and the few records
we have mention the fort as one of long standing.? In'

11t is evident th‘lt hereafter Madelaine Island was the chief seat of French
power in Chequamegon Bay, but it was not until the present century that eithei
the name La Pointe or Madelaine was applied to the island. Franquelin’s map
(1688), calls it ‘“Isle Detour ou St. Michel.” Bellin’s French map of Lake
Superior (in Charlevoix’s Histoire et description générale de Nouvelle
France, Paris, 1744), calls the long sand-point of Shagawaumikong (now Che:
quamegon Island), “Pointe de Chagauamigon,” and styles the present Made-
laine Island ¢ Isle La Ronde,” after the trader La Ronde; what is now Basswood
Island, he calls ““Isle Michel,” and at the southern extremity of the bay make”
a sign to the effect that there was once an important Indian village. In Dé
L2 Isle’s map, of 1745, a French trading house (Maison Francoise) is shown
on Shagnwaumikong Point itself, Madelaine Island has at vurious times
been known as Monegoinaiccauning (or Moningwunakauning, Chippewa foi
“golden-breasted woodpecker”), St. Michel, La Ronde, Woodpecker, Montreal,
Virginia (Schoolcraft, 1820), Michael’s (McKenney, 1826), Middle (because
midway between the stations of Sault Ste. Marie and Fort William at Pigeon
River), Cadotte’s, and La Pointe {the latter because of La Pointe village being
situated thereon). I

2 Minn. Hist, Colls., V., pp. 423-425, - j

3 It was during this period the only fur-trading station on the s6uth shore of
Lake Superior, and was admirably situated for protecting not only the west
end of the lake, but the popular portage route between Lake Superlor and the
Mississippi River,— the Bois Brulé and the St. Croix Rivers.
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1730, it is recorded that a nugget of copper was brought
to the post by an Indian, and search was at once made for a
mine ; but October 18, 1731, the authorities of New France
wrote to the home office in-Paris that, owing to the supersti-
tions of the Indians, which led them to conceal mineral wealth
from the whites, no copper mine had thus far been found
in the neighborhood of Chequamegon Bay. The com-
mandant of Chequamegon at this time was Sieur La Ronde
Denis, known to history as La Ronde,—like his predeces-
sors, for the most part, a considerable trader in these far
Western parts, and necessarily a man of enterprise and
vigor. La Ronde was for many years the chief trader
in the' Lake, Superior country, his son and partner being
Denis de La Ronde. They built for tbeir trade a bark of
40 tons, which was without doubt ¢¢ the first vessel on the
great lake, with sails larger than an Indian blanket.”' On
account of the great outlay they had ‘incurred in this and
other undertakings in the wilderness, the post of Chequa-
megon, with its trading monopoly, had been given to the
élder Li Ronde, according to a despatch of that day, ¢<as
a gratuity to defray expenses.” Other allusions to the
La Rondes are not infrequent : in 1736,2 the son is ordered
to investigate a report of a copper mine at Iron River,
not far east of the Bois Brulé; in the spring of 1740, the
father is at Mackinaw on his return to Chequamegon from
a visit to the lower country, but being sick is obliged to

1J, D. Butler’s ¢ Early Shipping on Lake Superior,” in Wis. Hist. Soc.
Proceedings, 1894, p. 87. The rigging and material were tuken in canoes
from the lower country to Sault Ste. Marie, the vessel being built at Point aux
Pins, on the north shore, seven miles above the Sault. Butler shows that
Alexander Henry was intercsted with a mining compauny iu launching upon
the lake in May, 1771, a sloop of 70 tons. After this, sailing vessels were
regularly employed upon Superior, in the prosecution of the fur trade and
copper mining. The Hudson Bay Company’s ¢ Speedwell” was upon the
. lake as early as 1789; the Northwest Company’s principal vessel was the
*“ Beaver.”

2Tn this yecar, there were reported to be 150 Chippewa braves living on Point
Chagouamigon.—AN. Y. Colon. Docs., IX.
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return to Montreal ;' and in 1744, Bellin’s map gives the
name ¢ Isle de la Ronde” to what we now know as Made-
laine, fair evidence that the French post of this period waﬂ
on that island. /

We hear nothing more of importance concerning CheH
quamegon until r1bout 1756, when Hertel de Beaubassm;
the last French commandant there, was summoned to Lower
Canada with his Chippewa allies, to do battle against the
English.?  For sevcml years past, wandering English fur
traders had. been t'lmpeunfr with the Chlppvens of Lake
Superior, who in consequence frequently maltreated thel[r
old friends, the French;® but now that the tribe were
summoned for actual fighting in the lower country, \V]t;h
extravagant promises of presents, booty, and scalps, they
with other Wisconsin Indians eagerly flocked under th"
French banner, and in paintéd swarms appeared on the
banks of the St. Lawrence, with no better result than to
embarrass the French commissariat and thus unwlttmgly
aid the ambitious English. |

New France was tottering to-her fall. The little garri-
son on Madelaine Island had been withdrawn from the
frontier, with many another like it, to help in the defence
of the lower country; and the Upper Lakes, no lonﬂe‘&'
policed by the fur trade monopoly, were free plunder for
unlicensed traders, or coureurs des bois. Doubtless such
were the party who encamped upon the island during tbe
autumn of 1760. By the time winter had set in upon
them, all had left for their wintering grounds in the forests
of the far West and Northwest, save a cletk named Joseph‘

1 Martin MSS., Dominion Archives, Ottawa,—letter of Beaulurnois. For
much of the forevomv data see Neill’s “ History of the O]lbways,” Jl[m'n
Hist. Colls., V. . ‘1‘

2 N. ¥. Colon. Docs., X., p. 424, |

3 Says Governor Galissoniére, in writing to the colonial oﬂlce at Paris, uudcr
date of October, 1748: ¢ Voyageurs robbed and maltreated at Sault Ste. Marie,
and elsewhere on Lake Superior; in fine there appears to be no seeurity any-
where.”—N, Y. Colon. Docs., X., p. 182.
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who remained in charge of the stores and the Tocal traffic.
With him were his little family,—his wife, who was from
Montreal, his child, a small boy, and a man-servant, or
voyageur. Traditions differ as to the cause of the servant’s
action,—some have it, a desire for wholesale plunder;
others, the being detected in a series of petty thefts, which
Joseph threatened to report; others, an unholy and uore-
quited passion for Joseph’s wife. However that may be,
the servant murdered first the clerk, and then the wife;
and in a few days, stung by the piteous cries of the child,
the lad himself. When the spring came, and the traders-
returned to Chequamegon, they inquired for Joseph and
his family, but the servant’s reply was unsatisfactory and
he finally confessed to his horrid deed. The story goes, -
that in horror the traders dismantled the old French fort
as a thing accursed, sunk the cannon in a neighboring
.pool, and so destroyed the palisnde that to-day naught
remains save grassy mounds. Carrying their prisoner
with them on their veturn voyage to Montreal, he is said
to have escaped to the Hurons, among whom he boasted
of his deed, only to be killed as too cruel a companion
even for. savages.! “ .

New France having now fallen, an English trader,
Alexander Henry, spent the winter of 1765—66 upon the
mainland, opposite the island.®* Henry had obtained from
the English commandant at Mackinaw the exclusive trade
of Lake Superior, and at Sault Ste. Marie took into

R

1Sec the several versions of this tale, in Wis. Hist. Colls., VIIIL., pp. 224
et seq.; and Minn. Hist. Colls., V., pp. 141-145, 431, 432. Warren says that
some Chippewa traditions ascribe this tragedy”to the year 1722, but the weight
of evidence is as in the text above.

2 ¢ My house, which stood in the bay, was sheltercd by an 1slnnd of nfteen
miles in length, and between which and the main the channel is four miles
broad. On the island there was formerly a French trading-post, much fre-
quented; and in its neighborhood a large Indian village.”—Henry’s Travels,
p. 199. Henry doubtless means that formerly there was an Indian village on
the island; until after the coming of Cadotte, the island was thought by the
natives to be bewitched.
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' |
partnership with him Jean Baptiste Ladotte,! a thriftgr
Frenchman, who for many years thereafter was one of
the most prominent characters on the Upper Lakes.
Henry and Cadotte spent several winters together on
Lake Superior, but only one upon the shores of Chequa-
megon, which Henry styles ¢¢ the metropolis of the Chippé‘-
ways.”? ‘
_The next dweller at Chequamegon Bay, of whom, we
have record, was John Johnston, a Scotch-Irish fur
trader of some education. Johnston established himself
on Madelaine Island, not far from the site of the 01“
French fort; some four miles across the water, on the
mainland to the west, near where is now the white town
of Bayfield, was a Chippewa village with whose inhabi-
tants he engaged in trafic. Waubojeeg (White Fisher),
a forest celebrity in his day, was the village chief :i:t
this time, and possessed of a comely daughter whom
Johnston soon sought and obtained in marriage. Tak-
ing his bride to his island home, Johnston appears to
have lived there for a year or two in friendly comme'rc:;e
with the natives, at last retiring to his old station at
Sault Ste. Marie.® :

1 Jean Baptiste Cadotte (formerly spelled Cadot) was the son of one Cadeau,
who is said to have come to the Northwest in the train of Sieur de St. Lusson,
who took possession of the region centring at Sault Ste. Marie, in 1671. See
St. Lusson’s procés-verbal in Wis. Hist. Colls., XL, p. 26. Jean Bnptistjje,
who was legally married to a Chippewa woman, had two sons, Jean Baptiste and -
Michel, both of whom were extensive traders and in their turn married
Chippewas. See Minn. Hist. Colls., V., index.

2¢0n my arrival at Chagouenig, I found fifty lodges of Indians there.
These people were alnost naked, their trade having been interrupted, first by
the English invasion of Canada, and next by Pontiac’s war.”—IHenry’s Travels,
p. 193. : I

3 McKenney, in History of the Indian Tribes (Phila., 1854), I., pp. 15‘4,
155, tells the story. He speaks of Johnston as ““the accomplished Irish
gentleman who resided so many years at the Sault de Ste. Marie, and who was
not better known for his intelligence and polished manners than for his
hospitality.” Johnston died (wet. 66) at Sault Ste. Marie, Sept. 22, 1528. His
widow became a Presbyterian, and built a church of that denomination at the
Sault. Her daughter married Henry B. Schoolcraft, the historian of the
Indjan tribes. Waubojeeg died at an advanced age, in 1793.



1895.] The Story of Chequamegon Bay. 145

Mention has been made of Jean Baptiste Cadotte, who
was a partner of Alexander Henry in the latter’s Lake
Superior trade, soon after the middle of the century.
Cadotte, whose wife was a Chippewa, after his venture with
Henry had returned to Sault Ste. Marie, from which point
he conducted an extensive trade through the Northwest.
Burdened with advancing years, he retired from the traffic
in 1796, and divided the business between his two sons,
Jean Baptiste and Michel. _

About the opening of the present century,! Michel took
up his abode on Madelaine Island, and from that time to
the present there has been a continuous settlement upon it.
He had been educated at Montreal, and marrying Equay-
sayway, the daughter of White Crane, the village chief of
La Pointe,? at once became a person of much importance in
the Lake Superior country. Upon the old trading site at
the southwestern corner of the island, by this time com-
monly called La Pointe,—borrowing the name, as we have
scen, from the original La Pointe, on the mainland, and it
in turn from Point Chequamegon,— Cadotte for over a
quarter of a century lived at his ease; here he cultivated
a ¢ comfortable little farm,” commanded a fluctuating, but
often far-reaching fur trade, first as agent of the Northwest
Company and later of Astor’s American Fur Company,
and reared a considerable family, the sons.of which were,
as he had been, educated at Montreal, and became the
heads of families of Creole traders, interpreters, and voy-
ageurs whom antiquarians now eagerly seek when engaged
in. bringing to light the French and Indian traditions of
Lake Superior.? '

! Warren thinks he settled there about 1792 (Minn. Hist. Colls., V., p. 111),
but there is good evidence that it was at a later date.

24 The Cranes claim the honor of first having pitched their wigwam, and
lighted the fire of the Ojibways, at Shaug-ah-waum-ik-ong, a sand point or
peninsula lying two miles immediately opposite the Island of La Pointe.”’—
Warren, in Minn. Hist. Colls., V., p. 6.

8¢ Kind-hearted Michel Cadotte,” as Warren calls him, also had o trading-
post at Lac Cou{)te Oreille. He was, like the other Wisconsin Creole traders,

1 .
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In the year 1818 there came to the Lake Superio“r
country two sturdy, fairly-educated® young men, natives
of the Berkshire hills of Massachusetts,—ILyman \{[arm}ls
Warren, and his younger brother, Truman Abraham

They were of the purest New England stock, being lmeally
descended from Richard Warren, one of the ¢ Mayﬂower ?
company. Engaging in the fur trade, the brothers soon
became popular W1th the Chippewas, and in 1821 still
further entrenched themselves in the affections of the
tribesmen by marrying the two half-breed daughters of old
Michel Cadotte,—Lyman taking unto himself Mary, while
Charlotte became the wife of Truman. At first the War-
rens worked in opposition to the American Fur Compan&r,
but John Jacob Astor’s lieutenants were shrewd men and
understood the art of overcoming commercial rivals.
Lyman was made by them a partner in the lake traffic, and
in 1824 established himself at-La Pointe as the compangl’s
agent for the Lac Flambeau, Lac Courte Oreille, and
St. Croix departments, an arrangement which continu“ed

for some fourteen years. The year previous, the broth«%rs
1

in English employ during the War of 1812-15, and was at the capture of Mack-
inaw in 1812. He died on the island, July 8, 1837, aged 72 years, and was
buried there. As with most of his kind, he made money freely and spent; it
with prodigality, partly in high living, but mainly in supporting his mnny
Indian relatives; as a consequence he dled poor, the usual fate of men of his
type.—(Minn. Hist. Colls., V., p. 449.) Warren says (p. 11), the death
occurred ¢ in 1836,” but the tombstone gives the above date, I
Cass and Schooleraft visited Chequamegon Bay in 1820. Schooleraft says,
in his Nar ratwe, pp. 192, 193: ¢ Six miles beyond the Mauvaise is Pomt
~ Chegoi-me-gon, once the grand rendezvous of the Chippeway tribe, but now
reduced to a few lodges. Three miles further west is the island of St. Michel
(Madelaine), which lies in the traverse across Chegoimegon Bay, wheré - M.
Cadotte has an establishment. This was formerly an important trading f)os',
but is now dwindled to nothing. There is a dwelling of logs, stockaded in the
usual manner of trading houses, besides several out-buildings, and some land
in cultivation. We here also found several cows and horses, which have
been transported with great labour.” i
" 1 Alfred Brunson, who visited Lyman Warren at La DPointe, in 1843, wrote
¢ Mr. Warren had a Iarge and select’ library. an unexpected sight in an Indian
country, containing some books that I had never before seen.”—Brunson’s
Western Pioneer (Cincinnati, 1879), IL., p. 163. !
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had bought out the intérests of their father-in-law, who'
now, much reduced. in means, retired to private life after
forty years’ prosecution of the forest trade.!

The brothers Warren were the last of the great La Pointe
fur traders.® Truman passed away early in his career, hav-
ing expired in 1825, while upon a voyage between Mackinaw
and Detroit. Lyman lived at La Pointe until 1838, when
his connection with the American Fur Company was dis-
solved, and then became United States sub-agent to the
Chippewa reservation on Chippewa River, where he died
on the tenth of October, 1847, aged fifty-three years.3

Lyman Marcus Warren was a Presbyterian, and,
although possessed of a Catholic wife, was the first to invite
Protestant missionaries to Lake. Superior. _Not since the
days of Allouez had there becn an ordained minister at La
Pointe ; Warren was solicitous for the spiritual welfare of
his Chippewa friends, especially the young, who were being -
reared without religious instruction, and subject to the
demoralizing influence of a rough element of white bor-
derers. The Catholic Church was not just then ready to
reénter the long-neglected field; his predilections, too,
were for the Protestant faith. In 1830, while upon his an-
nual summer trip to Mackinaw for supplies, he secured the
cooperation of Frederick Ayer, of the Mackinaw mission,
who returned with him in his batteau as lay preacher and
school-teacher, and opened at La Pointe what was then the
only mission upon the shores of the great lake. Thither
came in Warren’s company, the latter part of August, the

1 Minn. Hist. Colls., V., pp. 326,383, 384,.450. Contempormieously with the
settlement of the Warrens at La DPointe, Lieutenant Bayfield of the British
navy made (1822-23) surveys from which he prepared the first accurate ebhart
of Lake Superior; his name is preserved in Bayfield peninsula, county, and
town; Wisconsin.

2 Borup had a trading-post on the island in 184G; but the forest commerce
had by this time sadly dwindled.

8 He left six children, the oldest son being William Whipple Warren, his-
. torian of the Chippewa tribe. See Williams’s ‘ Memoir of Willilam W,
Warren,” in AMinn. Hist. Colls., V.
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following year (1831), Rev. Sherman Hall and wife, who
served as missionary and teacher, respectively, and Mrs.
John Campbell, an interpreter.! W
La Pointe was then upon the site of the old French trading
post at the southwest corner of Madelaine Island ; and there,
on the first Sunday afternoon after his arrival, Mr. Halll
preached ¢ the first sermon ever delivered in this place by
a regularly-ordained Christian minister.” The mlSQlO?-
aries appear to have been kindly received by the Catholic
Creoles, several of whom were now domiciled at La Pointe.
The school was patronized by most of the families upon
the island, red and white, who had children of proper aglé.
By the first of September there was an average attendance
of twenty-five. Instruction was given almost wholly in
the English ]‘mﬁuaﬂe, with rewulal Sunday-school exer-
cises for the children, and frcquent gospel meetings for the
Indian and Creole adults. : \‘
We have seen that the first La Pointe village was at the -
southwestern extremity of. the island. Thlb was known :
as the ¢ old fort” site, for here had been the original Chlp-
pewa village, and later the fur-trading posts of the French
and English. Gradually, the old harbor became shallow,
because of the shifting sand, and unfit for the new :u]d
larger vessels which came to be used in the fur trade. The
American Fur Company therefore built a ‘“new fort ”j a
few miles farther north, still upon the west shore of the
island, and to this place, the present village, the name La
Pointe came to be transferred. Half-way between the
¢t old fort” and the ¢ new fort,” Mr. Hall crected (plob'\-
bly in 1832) ¢ a place for worship and teaching,” whlch
came to be the centre of Protestant missionary work | 1n
Chequamegon Bay. h
At that time, the Presbyterians and Congregationalists
1§ce Davidson’s excellent ¢ Missions on Chequamegon Bay,” in Wis. H;st

Colls., XTL., to which T am chiefly indebted for the following data concerning
the modern La Pointe missions. “
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were, in the American Home Missionary Society and the
American Board, united in the conduct of Wisconsin mis-~
sions, and it is difficult for a layman to understand to which
denomination the institution of the original Protestant
mission at La Pointe may properly be ascribed. Warren
was, according to Neill, a Presbyterian, so also, nominally,
were Ayer and Hall, although the last two were latterly
rated as Congregationalists. Davidson, a Congregational
authority, says: ¢ The first organization of a Congre-
gational church within the present limits of Wisconsin
took place at La Pointe in August, 1833, in connection
with this mission”;! and certainly the missionaries: who
later came to assist Hall were of the Congregational
faith ; these were Rev. Leconard Hemeﬁway Wheeler and
wife, Rev. Woodbridge L. James and wife, and Miss
Abigail Spooner. Their work appears to have been as
successful as such proselyting endeavors among our Amer-
ican Indians can.hope to be, and no doubt did much among
the Wisconsin Chippewas to stem the tide of demoraliza-
tion which upon the free advent of the whites overwhelmed
so many of our Western tribes. '

James’s family did not long remain at La -Pointe.
Wheeler was soon recognized as the leading spirit there,
although Hall did useful service in the field of publication,
his translation of the New Testament into Chippewa (com-

\

5 Wis. Hist. Colls., XII., p. 445. Mr. Davidson writes to me that in bis
opinion Ayer leaned to independency, and was really a Congregationalist; ‘Hall
is registered as such in the Congregational Year Book for 1859. ¢ Asto the
La Pointe-Odanah chureh,” continues Mr. Davidson, in his personal letter, ¢ its
early records make no mention of lay elders,—ofticers that are indispensable to
Presbyterian organization. In manner of organization, it was independent,
rather than strictly Congregational. This could not well be otherwise, with no
church nearer than the one at Mackinaw. 'That was DPresbyterian, as wus its
puastor, Rev. William M. Ferry. The La Pointe church adopted articles of faith
of its own choosing, instead of holding itself bound by the Westminster con-
fession. Moreover, the church was reorganized after the mission was trans-
ferred to the Presbyterian board. Yor this action there may have been some
special reason that I know nothing about. But it seems to me a needless pro-
cedure if the church were Preshyterian before.”
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pleted in 1836) being among the earliest of Western
books. Ayer eventually went to Minnesota. In "\Jay,
1845, owing to the removal of the majority of the ILia
Pointe Indians to the new Odanah mission, on Bad River, :
Wheeler removed thither, and remained their civil, as we]l
as spiritual, counselor until October, 1866, when he retirej‘d
from the service, full of years and conscious of a record of
noble deeds for the uplifting of the savage. Hall tarried
at La Pointe until 1853, when he was asswned to Cro‘w
Wing reservation, on the’ Mississippi, thus ending the
Protestant mission on Chequamegon Bay. The new church :
building, begun in 1837, near the present La Pointe Lmd-
ing, had fallen into sad decay, when, in July, 1892, 1t
'-»became the property of the Lake Superior Concrleoratlonal
Club, who purpose to preserve it as an hlstorlc treasurtz,
being the first church-home of their denomination in Wis-
consin. \ \
‘Not far from this intelestincr relic of Protestant pioneer-
ing at venerable La Pomtc is a rude structure dedlcated ‘

to an older faith. Widely has it been advertised, by
poets, romancers, and tourist agencies, as ¢ the 1dentlc"11~
log ‘structure built by Pére Marquette 73  while Withjn
there hangs a picture which we are soberly told by t]{ae
cicerone was ‘‘given by the. Pope of that time to
Murquette, for his mission church in the wilderness.” It
is strange how this fancy was born; stranger still that ‘!it
persists in living, when so frequently proved unworthy of
credence. It is as well known as any fact in modern
Wisconsin history,— based on the testimony of living eye-
witnesses, as well as on indisputable records,—that upon
July 27, 1835, five years after Cadotte. had. mtroduced
Ayer to Madelaine Island, there arrived at the bybud
village of La Pointe, with but three dollars in his pocket
a worthy Austrian priest, Father (afterwards Blshop)

Frederic Baraga. By the side of the Indian graveyard
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at Middleport, he at once erected ¢t a log chapel, 50x20 ft
and 18 ft. high,” and therein he said mass on the ninth of
August, one hundred and sixty-four years after Marquette
had been driven from Chequamegon Bay by the onslaught
of the Western Sioux.! Father Baragd’s resuscitated mis-
sion,— still bearing the name La Pointe, as had the mainland .
missions of Allouez and Marquette,—throve apace. His
“chlldllke simplicity,” kindly heart, and self-sacrificing
labors in their behalf, won to him the Creoles and the now

dly-lmpoveushed tribesmen ; and when, in the winter of
1836-37, he was in Europe begging funds for the cause,
his simple-hearted enthusiasm met with generous response
from the faithful. :

Returmno to La Pointe in 1837, he finished his little
chapel, bullt; log-houses for his half-starved parishioners,
and lavished attentions upon them; says Father Verwyst,
himself an experienced missionary amang the Chippewas :
«In fact, he gave them too much altogether—so to say—
spoiled them by excessive kindness.” Four years later,
his chapel being ill-built and now too small, he had a new ‘
one constructed at the modern village of La Pointe, some
of the materials of the first being .used in the second.
This is the building, blessed by Father Baraga on the
second Sunday of August 1841, which is to-day falsely
shown to visitors as that of Father Marquette. It is
needless to say that no part of the ancient mainland chapel
of the Jesnits went into its construction; as for the
picture, a ¢ Descent from the Cross,” alleged to have
once been in Marquette’s chapel, we have the best of testi-
mony that it was imported by Father Baraga himself from
Europe in 1841, he having obtained it there the preceding
winter, when upon a second tour to Rome, this time to

1Sce Father Verwyst’s Missionary Labors, pp. 146-149. Tlris chapel was
built partly out of new logs, and partly out of material from an old buildmg
glven to Father Baraga by the American Fur Company.
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raise funds for the new church.! This remarkable man,
though later raised to a missionary bishopric, continued
throughout his life to labor for the uplifting of the Indians
-of the Lake Superior country with a self-sacrificing zeal
which is rare in the annals of any church, and established
a lasting reputation as a student of Indian philology. He‘“{
left La Pointe mission in 1853, to ‘devote himself to the
Menomonees, leaving his work among the Chippewas of
Chequamegon Bay to be conducted by others. About thé:
year 1877, the white town of Bayfield, upon the mainland
opposite, became the residence of the Franciscan friarg
who were now placed. in charge. Thus, while the Prot-
estant mission, after a relatively brief career of prosp.erity,j
has long. since been removed to Odanah, the Catholics“
to this day retain possession of their ancient ﬁeld,in“
Chequamegon Bay.

|

. |

In closing, let us briefly rehearse the changes in the
location of La Pointe, and thus clear our minds of some.
misconceptions into which several historians have fallen.’ |
1. As name-giver, we have Point Chequamegon (or}
Shagawaumikong). Originally a long sand-spit hemming;
in Chequamegon Bay on the east, it is now an island.
The most conspicuous object in the local topography, it
gave name to-the district; and here, at the time of'the‘
Columbian discovery, was the Chippewa stronghold. !
2. The mission of La Pointe du St. Esprit, founded'
by Allouez, was, it seems well established, on the mainland|
at the southwestern corner of the bay, somewhere between!
the present towns of Ashland and Washburn, and possibly ij
l

18ee Wis. Hist. Colls., XIL., pp. 445,446, note. Also Verwyst’s Missionary
Labors, pp. 183,184, Tather Verwyst also calls attentlon to certain vest-
ments at La Pointe, said to be those of Marquette: * Thut is another fable|
which we feebit our duty to explode. The vestments there were procured by |
Bishop Baraga and his successors; not.one of them dates from the sevehteenthj
century.” ) :
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/
on the site of Radisson’s fort. The point which suggested
to Allouez the name of his mission was, of course, the
neighboring Point Chequamegon.

3. The entire region of Chequamegon Bay came soon
to bear this name of La Pointe, and early within the
present century it was popularly attached to the island
which had previously borne many names, and to day is
legally designated Madelaine.

4. When Cadotte’s little trading village sprang up, on
the southwestern extremity of the island, on the site of
the old Chippewa village and the old French forts, this
came to be particularly designated as La Pointe.

5. When the American Fur Company established a
new fort, a few miles north of the old, the name La
Pointe was transferred thereto. This northern village was
in popular parlance styled ¢ New Fort,” and the now
almost-deserted southern village ¢¢ Old Fort”; while the
small settlement around the Indian graveyard midway,
. where Father Baraga built his first chapel, was known as
¢¢ Middleport.”

La Pointe has lost much of its old-time significance.
No longer is it the refuge of starveling tribes, chased
thither by Iroquois, harassed by unneighborly Sioux, and
consoled in a measure by the ghostly counsel of Jesuit
fathers ; no longer a centre of the fur-trade, with coureurs
de bois gayly dight, self-seeking English and American
factors, Creole traders dispensing largesse to the dusky
relatives of their forest brides, and rollicking wvoyageurs
taking no heed of the morrow. Its forest commerce has:
departed, with the extinction of game and the opening of
the Lake Superior country to industrial and agricultural
occupation; the Protestant mission has followed the
majority of the Indian islanders to mainland reservations ;
the revived mission of Mother Church has also been quar-
tered upon the bay shore. But the natural charms of
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Madelaine ‘island, in rocky dell, and matted forest, and
sombre, pine-clad shore, are with us still, and over all
‘there floats an aroma of two and a half centuries of
historic association, the appreciation of which we need
to foster in our materialistic West, for we have none too
much of it. - ‘
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